
City of Milwaukie 
Milwaukie Park and Recreation Board (PARB) 

MEETING MINUTES 
Milwaukie City Hall 

Tuesday, March 18, 2014 
7:30 am 

 
Members Present: Mart Hughes, Bob Cooper, Lisa Gunion-Rinker, Lisa Lashbrook 

Mike Miller, & Lynn Sharp; Steve Butler (City staff liaison) and 
Jeroen Kok (North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District 
staff liaison)+ 

Absent: Ray Harris & Christie Schaeffer 
Visitors: Tonia Burns, North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District 

(NCPRD); and Kenny Hill, City of Milwaukie Public Works 
Department 

Minutes 
 
The minutes from the February 25, 2014 meeting were unanimously approved, upon a 
motion by Member Gunion-Rinker and a second by Member Cooper. 
 
Member Hughes said he wanted to add an agenda item regarding the NCPRD’s interest in 
proposing a new Parks District governance system and funding level; the PARB agreed to 
add it.    
 
Update on Spring Park Restoration Project 
 
Tonia Burns, Natural Resource Coordinator, NCPRD, started her presentation about the 
Spring Park enhancement project by giving an overview of the planning work that has taken 
place for this park over the past 5-10 years. Both Member Hughes and Councilor Miller 
served on the Stakeholder Group.  The Pocket Park was built in 2010.  Ms. Burns was 
successful in finding grant monies to undertake the upcoming Phase 2 improvements. She 
described the project scope as including a new trail (the existing trail is in poor condition 
and not in a good location), a small overlook area, and interpretative signs. Chair Hughes 
asked about the current status of the project. A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) had been 
issued and the District is currently working on a refined scope of work with GreenWorks and 
InterFlure.  Construction will occur during July-August, 2014.   
 
Minthorn Wetlands Area 
 
Kenny Hill, Streets/Stormwater Division Supervisor, Milwaukie Public Works Department, 
discussed some of the issues that his department has been addressing regarding the 
Minthorn wetlands area.  He has a good working relationship with the Wetlands 
Conservancy, the group that owns most of the wetland area (with the City owning a small 
portion).  Mr. Hill said the City has been trying to educate the public about the catch basin 
situation.  There is a man-made dam, and the City has the ability to lower the water level 
during flooding conditions.  Member Hughes asked if there was a specified water level, 
with Mr. Hill answering in the affirmative.   



CITY OF MILWAUKIE PARK AND RECREATION BOARD  
Minutes of March 18, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
Ms. Burns said that NCPRD and the Wetlands Conservancy work together to remove 
invasive plants, plant new vegetation, and try to deal with the partying/camping situations 
when they occur.  She expressed concern with the camping’s negative impacts on the 
natural resource, and was interested in learning what the City’s law enforcement staff could 
do to reduce this problem.  Member Hughes agreed that such damage is a big concern.  
He recommended that the City enact a policy about how to keep inappropriate behavior 
from happening in natural resource areas.  Ms. Burns said that Michael Pinker was talking 
with NCPRD about starting a Friends of Minthorn group.  Councilor Miller asked if 
Milwaukie Marketplace maintained the wetlands behind their complex; Mr. Hill said that 
they did.   
 
Member Lashbrook asked who was dealing with the homeless issue?  Ms. Burns 
responded that NCPRD, City Public Works, City Police and human services agencies are all 
trying to work together, but it is a difficult issue. Homelessness and partying is not just a 
Minthorn issue, but happens in many park and open space areas.  Councilor Miller asked 
who is supposed to pick up the trash that sometimes is dumped along the edge of 
Minthorn?  Mr. Hill indicated that the City would pick it up, if it were on City property.  
Member Hughes asked if there was a way to have people that acted inappropriately could 
be “trespassed” from Minthorn?  Councilor Miller suggested that a representative from the 
City’s Police Department be invited to the next PARB meeting.  Mr. Butler said he would do 
so.  Member Sharp indicated an interest in going on a site visit at some point in time. 
 
Four Parks Master Plan RFP - Schedule 
 
Jeroen Kok highlighted the most recent changes to the revised draft Request for Proposal 
(RFP) regarding “master planning” for three parks in Milwaukie (Balfour, Bowman-Brae, and 
Kronberg) and 30% construction drawings for Wichita parks.  Member Sharp suggested 
that language be added to allow the consultant to opt out; otherwise, she said the final draft 
looked good to her.  The rest of the PARB agreed with that assessment. Mr. Kok indicated 
that consultant selection and contract award are expected to occur in May, with Member 
Sharp having already volunteered to help out with the selection process.  Member 
Lashbrook asked how the PARB would be involved throughout the parks project?  Mr. 
Butler said it was a good question, and that he and Mr. Kok would bring options back for 
discussion by the PARB. 
 
NCPRD’s Interest in Proposing a New Parks District Governance and Funding System 
 
Member Hughes described NCPRD’s proposal to change to a different governance 
structure, with an independent Board and an ability to raise additional funds.  He pointed out 
that this approach came out of the District’s Master Plan update process, during which it 
became apparent that the aspirational goals and list of future projects could not be achieved 
under the District’s current structure.  Mr. Kok provided more detail about the different 
options included in the draft North Clackamas Parks District Master Plan.  Councilor Miller 
indicated his support for the concept, with some specific thoughts about how the proposed 
Board should be constituted.  After much discussion, Member Cooper moved, with a 
second by Member Lashbrook, that the PARB recommend that the City Council support 



CITY OF MILWAUKIE PARK AND RECREATION BOARD  
Minutes of March 18, 2013 
Page 3 
 
the draft Master Plan’s proposal to create a 266 District, with the opportunity for it to raise 
additional funds. 
 
Review of 2013 PARB Report to Council 
 
The PARB agreed to postpone this topic until its April meeting. 
 
Elections 
 
Since it was his last meeting, Member Hughes suggested that the PARB elect new officers, 
either today or at its next meeting.  Nominations were open for consideration, and Member 
Cooper was nominated as Chair and Member Gunion-Rinker as Vice Chair.  The PARB 
voted in favor, 5-0. 
 
All of the PARB members, along with Mr. Butler, stated their appreciation for Member 
Hughes’ contributions to the Board.  Member Hughes said he was happy to have served, 
and expressed trails and conservation of natural areas should be a top priority for the City. 
 
Projects Update 
 
Mr. Butler provided a brief update on Riverfront Park’s progress, indicating that the project 
was moving ahead.  He then handed out a description about RiversWest Small Craft 
Center, and mentioned that its President expressed interest in discussing his organization’s 
search for a new location at the PARB’s May.  The PARB was agreeable in having that item 
added to the next meeting’s agenda. 
 
Upcoming events – April 22, 2014:  Next PARB meeting 
 
Next Steps/Adjournment 
 
Member Sharp moved, with a second from Member Gunion-Rinker, to adjourn the 
meeting; motion passed 5-0. 
 
 


